
   

 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling In) 
 
To: Councillors Galvin (Chair), Runciman (Vice-Chair), 

Barnes, Cunningham-Cross, King, McIlveen, Potter and 
Steward 
 

Date: Monday, 26 March 2012 
 

Time: 5.00 pm 
 

Venue: Guildhall, York 
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is 5:00 pm on Friday 23 March 2012.        
 

3. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 8) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Committee held on 30 January 2012. 
 
 
 



 
4. Called-in Item: Neighbourhood Working - A New 

Approach  (Pages 9 - 34) 
 

 To consider the provisional decisions made by Cabinet at their 
meeting held on 6 March 2012 in relation to the above item, 
which has been called in pre-decision by Councillors Runciman, 
Reid and Ayre and post decision by Councillors Barton, Healey 
and Galvin in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. A cover 
report is attached setting out the reasons for the call-in’s and the 
remit and powers of the Scrutiny Management Committee 
(Calling In) in relation to the call-in procedure, together with the 
original report to and decisions of the Cabinet. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name : Jill Pickering 
Contact Details:  

• Telephone : 01904 552061 
• E-mail : jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting.  

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

Contact details are set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 
Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business from a published Cabinet (or Cabinet Member Decision 
Session) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called in’ 
business on the published date and will set out its views for 
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting in the 
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will 
be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ������������������������������
�������������

 ���� !"�#�������$"%$�

&�������
�
�
�
�
�
�&��������

���������������'�����(����)�
����������'���*�(����)��������(��*
�����)�+���)�����'���)�&�����)�
���,�� ��� �,���������-�.��������
-�������
�
�����������-������

�������� ����� ����������������)� /��������� �
-�������

�
�

���� ����	
	��
���
������
�����
�
���0�	��1�	����2���3����3�
�4	��4���5���6���������5��������7�4���
6�	���4���	�6	�8�3�
�4������	������5�����75��542������5��0��������
����5��47��349�
�
����
����	�+��7�3�
�4	�3�4�6�	���4������6	�8�3�
�4������	�������
	��6�
�����47��34������:����2����������5������
��/��
�3������	4��2���

����34�������	4��7���4��5���34�75��	�14��
�5���40��������0�	�	��6����0�����	��5��	�6�	�9�
�
����
����	�,4�����3�
�4	�3�4�6�	���4������6	�8�3�
�4������	����
���	��6�
�����47��34������;���5��������������43����4�3�
����
��������	��.4
�������<�&	�
�	����������6�	4��	�
�		4�7��������4��5���6����	�3���������5����	
������+��75���
6�4��	�9�
�

���� ��������	
�����	��
��
���
����	��
���
�
���14��	�6�	��3��54��������0�	������5��6�0��
�543�	�7����	�3����
�6�4
�4���5��������7���3�	��5������
��/��&�0��
�&4	��
�64�����
�
5���9��
�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 3Page 3



���� ���������
�
�����'� <� �54���5��������������5���4����
	������

�4�47�����������������4����7�����������7�
5��3����:��6	���$"%%�0��466	�2�3�4�3���7��3�
0���5���54�	�4��4�
�		�
��	�
�	39�

�
���� �	��������������
�����
���
������
��������

	�������
	�����	��
��
�	��
����
	��� ��
�
���0�	��	�
��2�3�4�	�6�	��15�
5�4�
�3��5������
����3�	��5��
6	�2�����4��3�
��������43��0���40�����4���5��	�������7�5��3����
%"�#4��4	��$"%$9��5��	�6�	�����75��466	�24�����	�2�����5��

�		����466	�2�3�43������	4��2��4

����34�������	4��7��
�����1��7���7���7��64
��6�4����7����	��4���������5����2������5��
��1�����
���5�43=�4	��	��4��,��������
��9�
�
 ��4��������5���40����/��3�
�������1�	��4��4
5�3�4������>������
�5��	�6�	��4�3��5���	�7��4��	�6�	������5���40�����14��4��4
5�3�4��
����>�-9��5��6	�2�����4��3�
�������543�0����
4���3����0�����	��
�4�2��)����14	3�4�3�-4	���)�����5��7	���3���54�<�
�

��� �������	
�����
������������������
������
�
��� ����
��	����������	�	���	�����������	
�����������

��

���������������	�
������
���������������������������
�������������������
��������
����

�
��� ����	������
���
����������
����
���������
������


����������������� 
������������������	����������	�����
�����������
�
����	��������!�������	��� �	��
��

�
"�� �����������
������������
�����
����������
�����
������

������#���
�����
�
���0�	��1�	��4�
�3����3�
�3��15��5�	����
����	���5��
6	�2�����4��3�
���������6���������	����	���	��5���04

�����5��
�40�������	�	�*
����3�	4�������6�����-�9�
�
���	��4�2���433	����3��5��������7����0�54�������5���4����7*���
���0�	�9�(���>64�3�3�����5�����	�	�4�����7�2�����	��5��
4��*
��9����14��
����	��3��54��5���
��������	��4��3�����5��15����
����354���
��6��>�4�3�5��	�=�����3�3���	�����6��3��7�
�>4���4��������4����6������4�3�6�0��
�
������4����9������	��
��
14��4�����43������5��?�42����	�����354��/��*6������������5��

Page 4



����
��/��1�0�����4�3�����5����	
�&	����
4�64�7�����6	���
���5��
����354��/������	��1��5�;@A����	��6��3���������42��	9��
�
����
�	��	��6��3�3�����5��6�������43�)�	����	4���7��5��	�4�����
��	��5��6	�6���3�
54�7������5��4

����34�������	4��7��15�����
	�
�7�����7��5����6�	�4�
������5������354���
��6��>9� ��4�������
�5����7���7������	24�����4�3�(�	��47��&�4����	��5�������14��

����	��3�15�
5�1���3�4���������6	�7	�����7��5��3�2���6��������
����	�����9�����	��
��14��4�����43������5��1�3�	���������5��
����354�����	�
�2�
��

4�����9�����
�
����	�4������3�04��)����	��4�2�����2�3�4�3����	����14	3�
��
��3�3��54���6�����-�0��466	�2�3�4�3��5���4���	�	���		�3�
04

�����40�������	�	�
����3�	4����)�1��5�4�	�
�����34������54��
�5��3�
������0��3���		�3���	��5�������1��7�	�4����<�

•� ��������75��6������4	�����0��
����3�	�39�
•� �5������������5������	����������5������354���14��	�7����	�3�
4��4��
	��������6�
��4�����4	�4�3�54���������	�6�	���	��2���

����3�	��5������9�

•� -�
4�������������6�	�4���5����	�
4��64	������5��7�2�	�4�
��
����5�������4������0�	���5���3�0��
�������3�4�3�6�0��
�
�6���������75��1��5�4���3�
������0���7��4
���0�������
����
��9�

�
�1�����0�	��2���3���	��5���6	�6��4��4�3��5	���2���3�474�����
4�3��5���������14������9����14���5���
�
�����'� <� �54���6�������0��466	�2�3�4�3��54���5��

6	�2�����4��3�
�����������5���40�����0��

����	��39�

�
������<� ���4

�	34�
��1��5��5��	�=��	�����������5��

����
��/��������������9�
�

���� �	�������������������
������ ���	�����	���
�
�����������
���	�����������

��
������
��

��
	�

�	

	����������
�
���0�	��	�
��2�3�4�	�6�	��15�
5�4�
�3��5������
����3�	��5��
3�
��������43��0���5���40��������0�	���	������	�)������	��4�3�
��
�4����
�������4��5�	� �
��������������5��3����%"�#4��4	��
$"%$9��5���	��4��3�����5��6	�
�	������6	�
������	��5���6�	4�����
4�3��4�����4�
������5��������������43����4�3��5������
��/��
�����	���4
�������9�
�

Page 5



 ��4��������5���40��������0�	��3�
�������1�	��4��4
5�3�4��
����>�������5��	�6�	��4�3��5���	�7��4��	�6�	������5�� �
������
��������14��4��4
5�3�4������>�-9��5��3�
�������543�0����

4���3����0�����	����	�)����3)�.�	�5�4�3� /�7�	�������5��7	���3��
�54�<�
�
*� ��������	���������
���
���
��������	�
���
������
�
������
!
��������
��
���
���
���	������	���������������
�
����
��
�����������
�
�
���������
����������
���������������
	�������
�����������
������������� ��
����$�������
�����������
��
���%	��������
�������������������������
�
���
���
���������
��

��
�
�����������
���
���������������������	��
�����������
�����

�������������������	�
�
����������������������
�����������
�

*� &��
����������������������	�������'������
�
�����������!���

����
������������ ��
����$������������
��������������
�
���
���������
���
�����	�������������!�������������
��������	���
���������� ��
�����	��
�
�
����������������
���
���

�
���0�	��1�	��4�
�3����3�
�3��15��5�	����
����	���5��
3�
���������6���������	����	���	��5���04

�����5���40�����
���0�	���	�	�*
����3�	4�������6�����-�9�
�
���	���	��433	����3��5��������7����0�54�������5���4����7*���
���0�	�9�(���>64�3�3�����5��	�4�����7�2�����	��5��
4��*���
6������7������54���5��6	�
�	������
	���	�4�14��
	�
�4�����5��6��7�
�546���5���4
����4����6	�2�3�3�4���5����43����0���5����

�������
0�33�	9�(���>6	����3�
��
�	���54���5���14��4�
���������
��43����0���1��5������6����	����5��6�0��
�4�3�	�=�����3��5��
6	�2���������4���	��3��4���3�	�6�	�������
��3��3��4��������5��
1��75���7�7�2�������5��6�����������3�4��64	47	465�:�����5��	�6�	�9�
�
���	� /�7�	���
����	��3�5����������66�	����	��5��
4��������	��5��
	�4�������4��3�4�3�4���5�	��1�	�����6	�6��4�����	�6�0��
�
�
	�����9�(���>6	����3�
��
�	���4���5��
�����
����������5��
6	�
�	������6	�
����6	��	����	�
��6�����6�4����7�6�	�������9�(��
4����	���		�3����4����0�	����4	�4��15�
5�466�4	�3��������542��
0�����>4����3���
��3��7���
�4������	6	����4�3��5������
�����
�����4�3�
54	7�������>�����7�����
��������	���4
�������9�
�
���	�-4	�����6�
�������66�	�����	���	��
��04

�����5��
	�
�����34����������40�����	�����3�6�5�4�4����������5���������
��2��2�3����0��
4		��3����9�(��	���		�3����4����0�	����=���������
�54���5��	�6�	���4���3����4��1�	�4�3�������54�����14�������������	�4�

Page 6



�4�47������6	�
�	������6	�
�������0�7���04��3�����5��

������������5��	�6�	�9���
�
����
�	��	��6��3�3�����5��6�������43�)�
����	���7��54��
�>�����2����4��0������1�	
�543�0����
4		��3�����4�3�����	�4��
�4	
���������7���3�	�4
�������3��������5���6��������4������
6	�
�	��7�4�3�
����	�
���7��5����43���������1��7����
6	�
�	������7��3������9��5���	�0����6	�
����543�3	41�����
432�
��	�
��2�3��	���6	��������4��6	�
�	������
������4����4�3�
��74������
�	�9����14��
����	��3��54��4�	�6�	������5��0��������

4�����	��5��
����	�
���������5����43����1���3�0��
����3�	�3�4��
�40���������4	
5�$"%$9��
�
����	�4������3�04��)����14��
�
�����'� <� �54���6�������0��466	�2�3�4�3��54���5��

3�
�����������5���40��������0�	���	������	�)�
�����	��4�3���
�4����
�������0��
����	��39�

��
������<� ���4

�	34�
��1��5��5��	�=��	�����������5��

����
��/��������������9�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���	�#��4�2��)��54�	�
B�5��������7���4	��3�4��;9""�6��4�3������5�3�4��C9;"�6�D9�

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
  

 

   

 

Scrutiny Management Committee 
(Calling–In)  

26 March 2012 

 

Report of the Assistant Director, Governance and ICT 
 
Called-in Item:  Neighbourhood Working – A New Approach 

 
Summary  

 
1. This report sets out the reasons for the pre-decision call-in and the 

post-decision call-in of the above item, which appeared as item 7 on 
the agenda for the Cabinet meeting held on 6 March 2012. The 
report sought members’ approval for a new model of Neighbourhood 
Working through which the Council would work with partners to 
deliver better services for York’s communities. This cover report sets 
out the powers and role of the Scrutiny Management Committee in 
relation to dealing with the call-in. 

 
Background 

 
2. An extract from the decision list published after the Cabinet meeting 

is attached at Annex A to this report. This sets out the provisional 
decisions taken by Cabinet on the called-in item. The original report 
to the Cabinet on the called-in item is attached as Annex B to this 
report. 
 

3. Councillors Runciman, Reid and Ayre have initially called in this item 
for review, pre-decision by the Scrutiny Management Committee 
(SMC) in accordance with the constitutional requirements. The 
reasons given for the call in are: 
 
(i) There has been a complete lack of consultation with 

stakeholders, including ward councillors and ward 
organisations such as Parish Councils.  The results of 
consultations should be clearly reported. 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 9



(ii) The potential effect of the measures being suggested to 
neighbourhood working across the city mean that any 
decision on the future of this report should be taken by all 
members, given the impact it will have on all communities in 
the city. 

 
(iii) The report does not take into account the continual running 

costs of present projects (such as the cost of salt bins 
already in place), and the effect they might have on future 
budgets. 

 
(iv) Options other than the proposed ‘Community Contracts’ 

concept have not been properly proposed or discussed. 
 

4. Following the provisional Cabinet decision on this matter on 6 March 
2012, Councillors Barton, Healey and Galvin then also called in the 
item, post decision, for review by the Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC) in accordance with the constitutional 
requirements. The reasons given for the post-decision call in are: 

 
(i) Lack of consultation with Parish Councils and Ward 

Members, and the potential effect lack of grants will have on 
the future of local organisations. 

 
(ii) Challenge to the assumption the new system will be non-

bureaucratic. (Paragraph 8). 
 

(iii) Opposition to a non elected organisation distributing public 
money by way of grants previously voted upon by residents. 

 
(iv) Lack of information regarding the effect of double taxation 

following the implementation of the scheme. 
 
Consultation  

 
5. In accordance with the requirements of the Constitution, the calling-

in Members have been invited to attend and/or speak at the Call-In 
meeting, as appropriate.   

 
Options 
 

6. The following options are available to SMC (Calling-In) in relation to 
dealing with both pre and post decision call-ins, in accordance with 

Page 10



the constitutional and legal requirements under the Local 
Government Act 2000: 

 
(i) To decide that there are no grounds to make specific 

recommendations to the Cabinet in respect of the report.  If 
this option is chosen, the provisional decisions taken on the 
item by Cabinet at their meeting held on 6 March 2012 will be 
confirmed and will take effect from the date of the SMC 
(Calling-In) meeting; or 

 
(ii) To make specific recommendations to the Cabinet on the 

report, in light of the reasons for given for the pre and post 
decision call-ins.  If this option is chosen, the matter will be 
re-considered by the Cabinet at a meeting of Cabinet 
(Calling-In) to be held on 3 April 2012. 

 
Analysis 
 

7. Members need to consider the reasons for both pre- and post 
decision call-in and the report to the Cabinet and form a view on 
whether there is a basis to make specific recommendations to the 
Cabinet in respect of the report. 

 
Council Plan 
 

8. The Neighbourhood Working model is key to delivering the Stronger 
Communities priorities within the Council Plan and its key priorities 
including community engagement, stronger voluntary sector, safer 
inclusive communities, improved community infrastructure, healthy 
sustainable communities and communities where young people 
flourish. 
 
Implications 

 
9. There are no known Financial, HR, Legal, Property, Equalities, or 

Crime and Disorder implications in relation to the following in terms 
of dealing with the specific matter before Members; namely, to 
determine and handle the call-ins. 

 
  Risk Management 

 
10. There are no risk management implications associated with the pre 

or post decision call in of this matter. 
 

Page 11



 Recommendations: 
 

11. Members are asked to consider both the pre- and post decision call-in 
and their accompanying reasons and decide whether or not they wish 
to make specific further recommendations on the report to the Cabinet. 
 

     Reason: To enable the called-in matter to be dealt with 
efficiently and in accordance with the requirements of 
the Council’s Constitution. 

 
Contact details: 
 
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the 

report: 
 

Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services 
Manager 
01904 551030 
email: 
dawn.steel@york.gov.uk 

Andrew Docherty 
Assistant Director Governance and ICT 
 
Report 
Approved 

√ Date 16 March 2012 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  None 
 
Wards Affected:   
 

All √ 
 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Annexes 
Annex A – Provisional decisions of the Cabinet 6 March 2012 (extract 
from the decision list) 
Annex B – Report to Cabinet meeting on 6 March 2012  
 
 
Background Papers 
Provisional decisions of the Cabinet on the called in item (published on 
the Council’s website after the meeting on 7 March 2012) 

Page 12



 

 

Annex A 
CABINET 

 
TUESDAY, 6 MARCH 2012 

 
EXTRACT FROM DECISIONS 

 
Set out below is a summary of the decisions taken at the meeting of 
the Cabinet held on Tuesday, 6 March 2012.  The wording used does 
not necessarily reflect the actual wording that will appear in the 
minutes. 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in a decision, 
notice must be given to Democracy Support Group no later than 4pm 
on the second working day after this meeting. 
 
If you have any queries about any matters referred to in this decision 
sheet please contact Jayne Carr. 

  

7. NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING - A NEW APPROACH 

 

 

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet make the following in 
principle decisions, pending consideration by 
the Scrutiny Management (Calling In) 
Committee on 26 March 2012: 

 
(i) That the model of Neighbourhood   

Working be adopted, including the 
arrangements for: 

 
i. Community Contracts, as set out in 

paragraphs 9 and 10 of the report 
ii. Ward funding, as set out in 

paragraph 11 of the report 
iii. A new remit for the Neighbourhood 

Management and Equalities 
Teams, as set out in paragraph 14 
of the report  

 
 (ii) That the Director of Communities and 

Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and 
Social Inclusion, be instructed to: 

 

Page 13



 

 

i. Carry out a restructure of the 
Neighbourhood Management Unit 
and Equalities Team under the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation in 
order to deliver the new model. 

ii. Deliver the new “Love where you 
Live” approach. 

iii. Procure a third sector 
management organisation to 
undertake the administration of the 
voluntary sector funding pot. 

 
REASON:  To deliver better services for York’s 
                            communities. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Annex B 

 

  
 

   

 
 

  
Cabinet        6 March 2012 
    
Report of the Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and Social Inclusion 
 

Neighbourhood Working – A New Approach 
 

Summary 

1. This report proposes a new model of Neighbourhood Working 
through which the Council will work with partners to deliver better 
services for York’s communities.   

Background 

2. The Localism Bill sets out a series of challenges for local government 
and specifically for City of York Council. Some of the key issues 
include the community right to challenge to run local authority 
services, the right to bid to buy community assets, and 
neighbourhood planning: The ability to set out development plans at 
a neighbourhood level. All of these presuppose the existence of well-
established and well-supported neighbourhood groups with an 
interest in undertaking such work. 

3. In addition to the devolution of powers from the central to the local, 
there is also a planned devolution of power and action from the 
institution to the smaller group of committed activists / employees / 
volunteers. York has signed up to the Co-operative Council 
movement with the intent to empower employees who wish to take a 
greater stake in their work. At the same time, the Open Public 
Services white paper encourages the public sector to explore the 
opportunities for establishing social enterprises and working with the 
voluntary sector.  

4. Co-production is a new vision for public services based on 
recognising the resources that citizens already have and delivering 
alongside their users, their families and their neighbours in 
partnership with the public. 

Page 15



5. The Council’s approach to Neighbourhood Working should be seen 
in the context of a co-ordinated city-wide approach to boosting 
connectivity between people at neighbourhood level. The essence of 
this approach is about supporting different, flexible ways to attract 
people to give time and resources to initiatives and causes on their 
doorstep, in their local communities, that matter to them. 

6. The ethos of neighbourhood working means working alongside 
residents as equal partners to shape their own areas and 
neighbourhoods by developing local solutions for the things that 
matter most to them. This approach is about developing “Good 
Society” where: 

• Residents establish local priorities  

• Communities develop and deliver their own innovative solutions  

• Service providers work together to deliver efficient services shaped 
by residents 

• The voluntary sector gets increasingly involved in helping meet local 
needs 

 
A Neighbourhood Working Model 

7. An “Area Working” pilot took place for 12 months up to September 
last year in Acomb, Dringhouses / Woodthorpe, Holgate, Micklegate 
Rural West, and Westfield wards. It is clear that the approach taken 
in the pilot was overly bureaucratic and would not be sustainable on 
a city-wide basis.  In developing a new model we have, however, 
been able to take account of some useful approaches that Members 
identified during the pilot including: 

a) Ward profiles that provide a comprehensive picture of the needs 
of communities and audit information that tells us what is 
already available in a ward and where the gaps are. 

b) Working with service deliverers and partners on delivery plans 
to address the ward priorities developing new initiatives and 
sharing good practice.  

c) Working with CVS to develop a volunteer database and a 
corresponding volunteer opportunities database to link residents 
to the volunteering opportunities that suit them.  

d) Locating staff within wards, making them a ‘hub’ for local 
information so they can work more effectively with communities. 

e) Introducing Facebook and Twitter and regularly getting 
messages out into the community.    

Page 16



8. In order to meet the challenges of the new Council Plan we now 
propose a new model of Neighbourhood Working that will be simple 
and non-bureaucratic and which will: 

a) Be led by ward members  

b) Build on current ward committee arrangements and be flexible 
to suit the needs of different wards 

c) Provide a strong project management approach to delivering the 
priorities identified by members 

d) Streamline officer roles and remove duplication amongst officers 
working in wards 

e) Provide for integrated partnership working at ward level  

f) Recognise that some wards have greater needs than others 

g) Provide clear channels for members to report problems / service 
issues and have them dealt with efficiently 

h) Provide strong leadership to embed equalities good practice in 
local service delivery  

i) Deliver efficiency savings 

9. The new model will support members in the following areas: 

Ward 
Profiles   

• These documents will contain ward level data relating to 
economy, employment, community safety, environment 
and levels of satisfaction. This data will be 
complemented by local knowledge and will enable 
members to make informed choices in relation to the 
priorities for each ward.  

↓ 
Ward 
Audits  

• These will tell the ward member what facilities exist 
within the ward, what activities are being delivered and 
by whom, and about schedules of work e.g. footpath / 
highway improvements, road sweeping and litter bin 
collection.   

The Ward Audit will give residents easy access to what 
is available to them and reduce the perception that 
‘nothing is happening’. It will help us to work with service 
providers to identify where there are any gaps and 
develop ways to address them. 

↓ 

Page 17



Ward 
Priorities  

• Members will set priorities for the ward using the profile 
data, local intelligence and resident ambition.  An Action 
Plan will then be drawn up.   

Ward audits will help in framing actions by highlighting 
existing provision and enabling members to identify any 
gaps in provision.   

• The Action Plan will help residents to hold the Council to 
account for activity to address the priorities as we report 
back on the web and at Ward Committees.  It will also 
enable us to respond quickly for example when external 
funding becomes available. 

↓ 
Community 
Contracts 

• The most significant new element of the Neighbourhood 
Working model, Community Contracts will: 

• Focus on services that will contribute to addressing 
the ward priorities identified by members, whether 
delivered by the Council or other agencies.    

• Stipulate what level of service local communities 
can expect to receive. 

• Record what is expected of local communities. 

• Provide data against which communities can 
measure service delivery.  

• Enable the ward to redesign services in a way that 
meets community need within available budget. 

• Guide the allocation of resources to wards by the 
Cabinet in the form of “credits”. 

 
10. Key elements of setting up and running Community Contracts will be: 

a) Ward Members will take the lead in drawing up the Community 
Contract through Ward Team Meetings.  Led by the ward 
members and involving representatives of partner agencies as 
required, these will replace Ward Partnership Boards. 

b) Twice yearly the Neighbourhood Manager will report back to the 
Ward Committee Meetings on the progress that has been made 
in delivering against the Community Contract allowing members 
to monitor service delivery.  These reports will be supplemented 
by more frequent data where appropriate. 

Page 18



c) Heads of service and their partner equivalent will work together 
(using “Lean systems” thinking) to redesign service delivery in 
response to the Community Contract. This will be supported by 
the Council’s new Innovation Team. 

d) In many wards the Community Contract will simply constitute 
the monitoring of a straight forward service level agreement type 
document which will be facilitated by data relating to Council 
services produced through the Council’s existing data systems.  
In wards with particular needs, however, the Contract is likely to 
involve a range of agencies and will guide the development of 
new services and new approaches to address particular issues. 

e) In response to the Council’s commitment to fairness and 
equality the Community Contract will identify how services have 
accounted for equality issues based on an equalities impact 
assessment.   

Neighbourhood Budgets 

11. The Fairness Commission has recommended that ward budgets are 
not continued in their current form.  In order to provide improved 
scope for Ward Members to work with their communities to shape 
service delivery through Community Contracts it is proposed to 
replace ward budgets with a new system with four components:  

a) Ward Budgets:  Each ward will have an allocation to use as grant 
funding to commission local voluntary and community 
organisations to meet identified needs. Ward members will allocate 
these grants annually involving residents in decision making as 
appropriate to local circumstances.  This funding will be allocated 
by wards only to organisations based in the ward and providing 
services in the ward.  City-wide organisations which might provide 
services to more than one ward will not be allowed to apply to this 
pot.  Eligible organisations will include voluntary sector 
organisations, residents associations, community halls, sports and 
other clubs.  Parish Councils and other public agencies will not be 
eligible to apply.  It is proposed to allocate £75k to this pot in 12/13 
which is in line with the spending profile in 11/12. 

b) Other Voluntary Sector Support:  It is recommended that £130k 
is allocated to a pot to support those voluntary sector organisations 
that provide services to more than one ward and that are currently 
forced to apply for a plethora of individual ward committee grants.  
This would clearly benefit the voluntary sector.  It will be made 
available for community development and outreach work.  A 
connection to wards will be maintained in that applicants will be 

Page 19



expected to have regard to ward priorities and will get their 
applications endorsed by ward members where appropriate. 

It is not intended that this fund would be open to Council services 
such as Street Sport; however, it is proposed that in the first year 
only, whilst the Ward Credits pot is being established, Council 
services are allowed to bid. 

It is recommended that management of this pot is put in the hands 
of a standalone third sector management organisation.  This would 
administer the schemes according to the Council’s criteria and 
priorities and would provide support to the recipient organisations 
including accessing additional funding / revenue sources, helping 
them to become more sustainable.  

At the same time this arrangement could create further efficiencies 
as the burden of assessing the performance of current grant 
holders would transfer from authority officers to the third party 
provider / administrator. 

This arrangement could draw together a range of different Council 
funding streams allowing for closer alignment of funding streams 
beneath a single, simplified reporting structure.  Other potential 
funding streams to be included in this arrangement will be further 
considered in the Voluntary Sector Strategy paper which will come 
to Cabinet in April. 

c) Ward Credits:  A “credits pot” will be created to be allocated to 
identified wards to be used to commission new services, either 
from within the Council or from other partners / sectors, to deliver 
on the Ward priorities.   

The credits pot will be formed by creating headroom within existing 
budgets.  To do this new, minimum service standards will be 
defined during 2012/13 for those core local services that are to be 
included within Community Contracts, particularly those services 
currently delivered by CANs.  This minimum level would become 
the default position for Community Contracts across the city.  
Where services currently exceed those minimum standards 
Cabinet will be able to aggregate the appropriate “spare” resource 
into the credits pot.  It is recommended that credits are allocated 
only to wards with the highest levels of deprivation. 

In the first instance the credits pot will have £19k allocated to it.  
Over time further budget areas may contribute to the credits pot.  A 
further report will be brought to members on this during 2012/13. 

d) Street Environment budgets:  These will remain available to 
address environment related priorities identified within wards. 

Page 20



12. In future requests for additional Council services such as street 
lighting or salt bins will go direct to provider departments.     

13. Funding available to wards will therefore be as follows: 

 All Wards Wards with higher  
deprivation 

Ward Budgets ü ü 

Street Environment 
budget 

ü ü 

Other Voluntary Sector 
Support Pot 

ü ü 

Ward Credits  ü 
 

Supporting Members to deliver Neighbourhood Working 

Neighbourhood Management: 
14. A smaller Neighbourhood Management team will support  Members 

to deliver neighbourhood working by: 

• Gathering local information to create ward profiles and ward 
audits.  

• Supporting Members to identify ward priorities. 

• Helping members to work with communities and partners to 
negotiate Community Contracts based on the priorities for the 
ward. 

• Providing project management on the Ward Action Plan and 
reporting performance back to members and residents.  

• Negotiating changes to services with providers at a ward level.  

• Commissioning services at a ward level based on the priorities for 
the ward using “credits”.    

• Understanding the needs of residents from the various 
communities of interest including communities within wards who 
are marginalised and through the community contract process 
ensuring they have appropriate accessible services to meet their 
needs.  

• Promoting volunteering and linking people to the right 
opportunities. 

• Procuring support for community centres and resident 
associations. 

Page 21



• Supporting partners and communities to recognise and address 
community tensions. 

• Helping to support communities in respect of the Neighbourhood 
Plans proposed in the Localism Bill. 

15. As the team will be small they will need to focus on those wards with 
higher levels of need and provide a light touch in the majority of 
wards. 

Ward Committees: 
16. In order to create a more cost-efficient and effective system it is 

proposed that the arrangements for ward committee meetings are 
changed so that there will be: 

a) One “Annual” Ward Committee meeting, normally to be held 
during May / June. This meeting will be arranged and facilitated 
by the Democracy Services team with relevant officers and 
representatives in attendance as at present with the 
Neighbourhood Manager attending to report back on progress 
against the ward action plan and community contract. 

b) Up to two further meetings held on a more informal basis to 
consider particular topics identified by residents.  These will be 
supported by the Neighbourhood Manager only and will include 
a further report back on progress against the ward action plan 
and community contract. 

Members may of course choose to organise additional Councillor / 
Resident focus groups that they will lead themselves.   

A proposed revision to the Council constitution is set out in the Annex 
A. 

Communications: 
17. The Council’s ambition is to ensure that its communications are 

increasingly tailored to specific audiences and delivered through a 
channel that best suits that audience. In addition, it is essential that 
communications become much more two way and that residents 
have a clear voice. 

18. The Council plans to shift the emphasis of its generic city wide paper 
based media towards better targeted community communications. 
This will be achieved by including Council messages and content in 
partner organisation’s magazines where they reach specific 
audiences. It will also include the use of free newspapers and 
magazines – particularly those used by the supermarkets and retail 
outlets in York. In addition to these activities, there will be an 

Page 22



increase the media available through our Explore Centres and 
Community hubs that features services and initiatives of interest to 
local residents.  

19. The Your Voice newspaper will regularly be produced to meet the 
needs of specific wards and communities and highlight the work 
going on within them.  There will be 3 ward publications a year, one 
for each ward, which will include ward agenda, meeting details, and 
contact details.  

20. There will be a transformation in the way we communicate with 
communities:  Alongside the traditional communication tools, there 
will be an increase in the availability of online services / data and new 
media. There will be specific areas of the Council website available to 
wards and communities to enable residents to understand the range 
of services being offered and to allow them to request a service or 
participate in a survey or initiative for example. Communities will be 
encouraged to post content on our websites. In addition, the 
popularity of Facebook and Twitter means that for some parts of the 
city, there is an appetite for customers to communicate with the 
Council in this way. Phone apps will be in wide use.  The corporate 
communications team is committed to broadening the use of new 
media and enabling more choice for customers about the way in 
which they communicate with us.  

Equalities: 

21. The proposed development of the Neighbourhood Management Unit 
will support the Council to consult and engage with a range of 
communities, identify specific service needs and develop community 
contracts. The Neighbourhood Management Unit will be central to the 
development and design of services and understanding the gaps in 
service provision. 

22. There is a need to ensure that when we are consulting with 
communities or designing services to meet the needs of our service 
users and residents we are able to develop solutions to sometimes 
complex issues that can arise in the design of services. The 
quantitative data from the Business Intelligence Hub and Public 
Health will also support the Council to work with those who are most 
disadvantaged and vulnerable. 

23. To bring this together it is recommended that the Equality and 
Diversity Unit is incorporated within the new Neighbourhood 
Management Unit. This will enable the authority to ensure equalities 

Page 23



sits at the heart of consultation, engagement and development of 
services. 

Who Ward Members will Contact  

24. The following grid shows how ward members will be able to access 
the support they need: 

Contact: About: 

York Customer Centre (YCC): 
Provides a variety of contact 
channels, e.g. via 551550, email 
and Do It Online which allows 
members to raise service 
requests and track their progress.  
 
A mobile App where photographs 
of environmental crimes can be 
recorded and logged with the 
relevant services and then 
tracked is being developed. 
 
By April 2012 YCC will also be 
handling complaints including 
member complaints / enquiries 
about unresolved issues. 

 
One-off issues concerning street 
scene and environmental matters, 
non domestic business rates, council 
tax, refuse, electoral, frontline 
planning & building control and 
signposting to other council services. 
 
 
 
 
A monthly report from the contact 
centre would alert the ward team 
meeting to any recurring themes and 
a more in depth response can be 
explored. 

Street Environment: 
A named Street Environment 
Officer will be provided for each 
Ward within area teams (see 
below).  They will liaise with other 
front line staff within the area 
team. 

 
Street scene, environmental and 
enforcement issues where there is a 
bigger or more persistent issue e.g. 
where a number of residents have 
reported a problem or where there is 
a need for a more concerted, 
proactive approach. 

Delivery of agreed services within the 
environmental section of the 
community contract. 

Neighbourhood Management: 
A named Neighbourhood 
Manager will be allocated 

 
Delivery of the priorities in the ward 
plan, ward profiles and audits.  
Drawing up of Community Contracts.  
Working with partners to fill any 
“gaps” 

Page 24



Examples of Neighbourhood Working in Action  

25. Families:  York is part of the Community Budgets initiative 
addressing Families with Multiple Problems by supporting 
communities and combining public resources in the most effective 
manner.  We are currently pulling together specialists including those 
delivering the family intervention project, support for children at ‘The 
Edge of Care’ initiative, and others to focus their work and resources 
in the most deprived areas of York starting in Westfield Ward.  
Neighbourhood Working will support this initiative by: 

a) Harnessing the contribution of other colleagues and partners 
delivering front line services in the ward through the ward team 
meeting.  Partners will include the Police, youth workers, 
children centres, schools and the voluntary sector. They will use 
their relationships with local communities to develop a support 
network for referred families that will remain in place long after 
the project has finished.  

b) Progress will be reported to members as part of the ward action 
plan update at Ward Team meetings and to residents yearly 
through the Ward Committee meetings. 

26. Older People:  We know that five key indicators put older people on 
a downward spiral: Falls, strokes, incontinence, bereavement, 
dementia.  Imagine Mr Johnson turns up to see his GP having had a 
fall. During the course of the conversation his GP discovers Mr 
Johnson’s wife died 2 months ago.  The GP can treat the fall but 
needs support for Mr Johnson to reduce his loneliness and isolation: 

a) The practice manager accesses the ward audit and discovers 
that whilst there is a luncheon club in the ward it is too far for Mr 
Johnson to travel.  

b) The practice manager raises the fact that there is only one 
luncheon club in the ward with the Neighbourhood Manager who 
takes the issue to the Ward Team meeting. There ward 
members explore whether this is an issue for the wider 
community, whether any other organisation can introduce an 
additional service within their existing resources or whether 
members want to consider supporting the development of 
something with ward budgets, credits or other funding.  

27. Environment: Supposing an area is experiencing a high level of 
graffiti and similar anti-social behaviour: 

a) The Ward Member will be able to liaise with their Street 
Environment Officer to have the graffiti dealt with immediately.  
The SEO will also be able to liaise with the enforcement team 

Page 25



and other agencies in the area, who can then find out about the 
perpetrators and potentially to organise an immediate response, 
for example in the form of diversionary activities. 

b) The Neighbourhood Manager will be able to call on a number of 
tools to help the ward members engage the views of young 
people.  These tools, now described on the YorkOk website 
include the “Change Champions” initiative and others to suit 
different circumstances. 

c) A specific ward action plan may be developed that includes both 
improved reporting arrangements, co-ordinated activity between 
partners and some new services.  It may involve the co-
ordination of some new volunteer activity. 

d) Discussion through the Ward Partnership Team and the Ward 
Committee may lead to the establishment of a new Ward Priority 
reflected in a Community Contract.  This will involve officers from 
across the Council, for example from Young People’s services, 
the voluntary sector, the Police, etc. and may well lead to 
commissioning some additional services or provision using ward 
“credits”. 

e) Regular reports will be made to Ward Members on progress.  

Options 

28. The principal options available to members are to: 

a) Adopt the new model as proposed 

b) Retain the status quo 

c) Adopt an amended version of the model 

Analysis 

29. The model proposed is recommended as it provides the opportunity 
for residents to work with and through their ward committees to 
establish local priorities and come together to develop and deliver 
their own innovative solutions.  Community Contracts will assist 
service providers to work together to deliver efficient services shaped 
by residents. 

Council Plan 

30. The Neighbourhood Working model is key to delivering the Stronger 
Communities priority within the Council Plan and its key priorities: 

a) Community Engagement – more residents will understand and 
be engaged in planning, budgeting, priority setting and 
problem solving in their communities 

Page 26



b) Stronger voluntary sector – there will be a strong volunteering 
infrastructure with increased levels of volunteering in the city 
and opportunities for not for profit organisations to deliver 
services 

c) Safer inclusive communities – we will achieve safe, resilient 
and cohesive communities where no person or community 
feels left behind or disadvantaged 

d) Improved community infrastructure – we will establish an 
appropriate infrastructure including housing, leisure, schools 
and businesses supporting opportunities for capacity building, 
work and enterprise 

e) Healthy sustainable communities – we will create healthy and 
sustainable living options in communities 

f) Communities where young people flourish – we will consult 
with young people to build communities that reflect their needs 

Implications 

31. Finance:  The base budget for Ward Committees for 2012/13 is now 
£224k.   

32. Equalities:  We have completed an EIA of Ward Committees and 
developed an action plan to make them accessible to all.  As part of 
the roll out of Neighbourhood Working the EIA will be further 
developed to include the Community Contract process. 

33. HR:   Restructuring of the Neighbourhood Management Unit and 
relevant front line teams in CANs will take place to create the area 
approach outlined under the scheme of delegation and in line with 
the Council’s Management of Change procedure. 

34. Crime and Disorder:  The review of Capable Guardian 
arrangements to move to a “Team York” approach will impact 
positively on addressing crime and disorder issues. 

35. IT:  The communications approach outlined will have implications for 
the development of the Council’s IT systems. 

36. Planning:  These proposals are part of developing a local approach 
to how the new rights under the Localism Bill might be exercised. At 
a strategic level the Core Strategy Submission (Publication) 
(September 2011) supports the preparation of neighbourhood plans. 
The LDF promotes community cohesion and the development of 
strong, supportive and durable communities though the creation of 
sustainable, low carbon neighbourhoods. This will be delivered 
through the Core Strategy through a number of measures, including 

Page 27



the preparation of neighbourhood plans and implementing any 
planning actions through the development process. As such, the 
strategic approach to neighbourhood planning in the emerging Core 
Strategy fits in with the neighbourhood working model. 

37. There are no additional property or other implications. 

Risk Management 

38. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy the main 
risks that have been identified in this report are those which could 
lead to the inability to meet business objectives and failure to meet 
stakeholders’ expectations. Measured in terms of impact and 
likelihood, the risk score all risks has been assessed at less than 16. 
This means the risks need only to be monitored. 

Next Steps 

39. Following approval of the model work will be undertaken to:  

• Implement a restructure of the Neighbourhood Management 
Unit and Equalities Team – to be undertaken by the Director of 
Communities and Neighbourhoods under the Council’s scheme 
of delegation 

• Develop Ward Credits for implementation in 2012/13 with a 
further report to be brought to Cabinet in due course 

• Secure a third sector management organisation for the 
administration of grant funding 

• Create a new front line delivery system for environment related 
services – to be undertaken by the Director of Communities and 
Neighbourhoods under the Council’s scheme of delegation.  This 
will ensure that services work together in order to improve 
efficiency and responsiveness.  Area teams will bring together 
relevant resources to tackle street based enforcement activities 
to take action, using a range of powers, on issues such as 
graffiti, fly-tipping, parking offences and dog fouling, etc.  

The approach is encapsulated in the work on the Love Where 
You Live York initiative:  
www.lovewhereyouliveyork.wordpress.com  

The ‘Love where you Live' team will aim to reduce the amount of 
reactive action to enable partners to concentrate on real 
sustainable improvements in local neighbourhoods. This will be 
underpinned by improved working relationships with other 
services, partners and communities including young people 
together with improved reporting and resolution of environmental 

Page 28



issues tailored to the needs of local neighbourhoods and 
engaging local communities.  

Each area will also have a named officer responsible for reactive 
issues and ensuring that members’ and residents’ issues are 
resolved by the appropriate route.  This role will be an 
enhancement of the current Street Environment Officer role. 

• Some ward committee members also currently host / chair 
Capable Guardian meeting. These meetings are designed to 
bring front line partners together to address issues such as anti-
social behaviour. Members may wish to review the current 
system and develop it as a means of bringing together partner 
resources to address a wider range of issues as part of the ward 
team meetings badged as “Team York”. 

Recommendations  

40. Cabinet is asked to:  

a) Adopt the model of Neighbourhood Working including the 
arrangements for: 

i. Community Contracts as set out in paragraphs 9 and 10 

ii. Ward funding as set out in paragraph 11 

iii. A new remit for the Neighbourhood Management and 
Equalities Teams as set out in paragraph 14 

b) Recommend to Council a change in the Council’s constitution in 
respect of ward committee arrangements as set out in the Annex 

c) Instruct the Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods to:  

i. Carry out a restructure of the Neighbourhood Management 
Unit and Equalities Team under the Council’s scheme of 
delegation in order to deliver the new model 

ii. Deliver the new ‘Love where you Live’ approach?  

iii. Procure a third sector management organisation to 
undertake the administration of the voluntary sector funding 
pot 

Reason:  To deliver better services for York’s communities 

Annex A:  Proposed revisions to the Council Constitution in respect 
of Ward Committees 

Page 29



Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer responsible: 
Charlie Croft, Assistant 
Director (Communities and 
Culture) 

Stewart Halliday 
Head of Strategy, Partnerships 
& Communication 

Sally Burns 
Director of Communities and 
Neighbourhoods 

Report 
Approved ü 

Date 21.2.12. 

Specialist Implications Officers:   

Patrick Looker   Frances Sadler 
Finance Manager  City Strategy 

Wards Affected:   All ü 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Page 30



Annex A 
 
Summary and Explanation  

Ward Committees 
 
7.1 There are 22 Wards in the City of York which in some cases are 
merged to create 18 Ward Committees.   These Ward Committees 
provide local citizens an opportunity to influence local service delivery and 
to have a say more widely in Council affairs. They are responsible for 
considering local matters and have a devolved budget to spend on 
supporting local community groups and initiatives. The Ward Committees 
are comprised of Councillors for each Ward(s) who must exercise their 
delegated authority in consultation with local residents at annual meetings 
that are held in public.   
 
In addition to the annual meeting there are up to two themed ward 
committee meetings each year that provide an opportunity for residents to 
be involved in exploring specific issues and identifying solutions. 
 
Every household is notified of details of the Ward Committee meetings 
and all local residents are encouraged to attend and have their say. 
 

Responsibility for Functions 

9.1 The function of a Ward Committee is to: 

(a) Consider the needs of local communities and, taking account of the 
views of local residents, prepare a Community Contract for each Ward 
that is consistent with the Council Plan policies and priorities in so far as 
they relate to the Ward. 
 
(b) Formulate, develop and approve an Action Plan for the Ward based on 
the priorities in the Community Contract and scrutinise the delivery of 
local services based on the Plan. 
 
(c) Continuously monitor services and facilities within the ward to identify 
specific improvements which the Council or partners could introduce 
within available resources and make recommendations.  
 
(d) Provide wide-ranging opportunities for residents to monitor service 
delivery, inform service redesign and for communities to deliver services 
where practicable and appropriate. 
 

Page 31



(e) Bring to the attention of the Council the views of local people on any 
matter of local concern and identify practical arrangements which might 
improve communications between the Council and the people it serves. 
 
(f) Consider and provide advice to the appropriate Cabinet Member or 
Director on the provision of services within the ward by the Council and 
other bodies including any set up by the community. 
 
(g) Promote the principles and standards of the Council’s Open 
Government policy. 
 
(h) Decide on the allocation of resources contained within the Ward 
Committee budget in accordance with the Council’s Procedure Rules as 
set out in Part 4 in this Constitution except: 
 

i) Resources will only be used to award grants to community 
groups in the ward to support their contribution to the priorities 
set out in the Community Contract; 

ii) Services that require an “authorised officer” of the Council to 
exercise statutory functions. 

 
(i) Comment on proposals of the Cabinet, Committees and Sub – 
Committees of Council which have an impact on their Ward. 
 
 
PART 4C - ADDITIONAL STANDING ORDERS RELATING TO 
ANNUAL WARD COMMITTEES  
 
1 Meetings of the Annual Ward Committee 
 
1.1  The Annual Ward Committee meeting will be called by the Chair and 

meet once per year. 

1.2  Any member of the Committee may place an item of business on the 
agenda. 

 

2  Minutes 
 
2.1  Copies of the draft minutes of the previous meeting will be circulated 

to Members on the day the agenda is circulated, no less than 10 
clear days before the meeting is to be held. 

2.2  The minutes will be agreed at the next meeting of the Ward 
Committee and signed by the Chair. 

Page 32



2.3  The minutes of the Ward Committee will be entered in a Minute Book 
and be available for public inspection no more than five working days 
after they have been approved. 

 
3  Voting 
 
3.1  Voting at a meeting will be by a show of hands. Any Member may 

require their vote to be recorded in the minutes. 

3.2  In the event of any vote being equally divided the Chair will have a 
second or casting vote. 

3.3  Where only two Members are present any delegated powers can only 
be exercised if both Members are in agreement. 

 
4  Access 
 
4.1 Ward Committees will be subject to current access to information 

provisions. In addition the following will apply:- 

(a) The Chair of the Ward Committee will introduce all agenda items 
then allow public debate. 

(b)  The Chair of the Ward Committee will sum up at the end of the 
debate and together with other Members take a decision. 

 (c)  Meetings of the Ward Committee will be open to all residents of the 
ward to attend. 

(d)  The agenda will be publicised no less than five clear working days 
before a meeting is held. 

(e)  Agenda will include a residents’ question time (Have Your Say). 

(f)  A public notice board will be established for the ward on which all 
public information will be displayed.  (The Press and social media will 
be recognised as a public notice board.) 

(g)  Council officers will be able to attend and speak at meetings where 
the subject area is relevant to the ward or where a citywide issue 
might impact on residents in a ward.  

(h)  Members may invite representatives of other agencies to attend and 
advise at meetings where relevant items are to be discussed. 

(i)  The Council will communicate the findings on any issue raised with 
them by a resident to that person within ten clear days - unless the 
inquiry raises issues of law or practice, requiring a provisional 
response to be sent or where an issue requires further action and /or 
investigation the Council will communicate that this is the case 
providing a deadline for completion.  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	4 Called-in Item: Neighbourhood Working - A New Approach
	Annex A Cabinet Decision Record
	Annex B Report to Cabinet
	Annex B Report to Cabinet - annex to the report


